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OBITUARIES 
Sir Peter Henry Buck, K.C.M.G. (Te Rangi Hiroa) 

THE death of Sir Peter Henry Buck (Te Rangi 
Hiroa) on December I brought an end to one of the 
most extraordinary and distinguished careers the 
world has known. His passing is a bitter loss ; but 
he has left to us a priceless heritage. The influence 
of his warm and charming personality will endure so 
long as there are people who had the privilege of 
knowing him. The results of his lifelong efforts to 
describe accurately the arts and crafts of the peoples 
of Polynesia will remain as landmarks of scientific 
study in the field of anthropology, His contributions 
to our understanding of people and their problems 
are being incorporated as a part of an enduring body 
of knowledge about mankind. 

Sir Peter was born in New Zealand on August 15, 
1880. His father, William Henry Buck, was an 
Irishman; his mother, Ngarongo-ki-tua, was a 
native Maori of high status. After spending most of 
his younger years among his mother's people, he 
married Margaret Wilson, of Gremouth, New Zea­
land, in 1905 and entered the University of New 
Zealand. Receiving his M.D. in 1910, he served as a 
member of the New Zealand Parliament until 1914. 
From then until 1919 Dr. Buck served with the first 
Maori contingent of the New Zealand Medical Corps 

in Egypt and Gallipoli, achieving the rank of major. 
During this pericd his wife was a hospital nurse in 
London and in Alexandria. They were decorated for 
their war services, Mrs. Buck with the M.B.E., and 
Dr. Buck with the D.S.O. 

After the War, Dr. Buck became director of Maori 
hygiene in ·New Zealand, leaving in 1927 to serve as 
ethnologist for the Bishop Museum in Honolulu. In 
this latter capacity (accompanied by his wife) he 
made numerous field trips to the islands of Polynesia 
to collect detailed information on native customs, 
which served as the basis for his many publications 
on Polynesian ethnology. Since they were able to 
speak the native language of the people they visited 
and enjoyed intimate knowledge of one Polynesian 
society, the Maori, they accomplished far more in 
their research than would otherwise have been 
possible. In 1936 Dr. Buck was made director of the 
Bishop Museum and professor of anthropology at 
Yale University. In 1946, he was made a knight 
commander of the order of St. Michael and St. 
George in recognition of his scientific research. 

CLELLAN S. FORD 

Dr. Arthur Bulleid 
DR. ARTHUR BULLEID, who died at his heme, 

Dymboro, Midsorrler Norton, Somerset, on December 
27, at the age of eighty-nine, will be best remembered 
as the discoverer of the Iron Age 'B' site known as 
the Glastonbury Lake Village. 

Bulleid, who was by profession a medical prac­
titioner, had an early opportunity of cultivating a 
taste for archmology, and having read Keller's book 
on the Swiss Lake-dwellings; Munro's "Lake Dwellings 
of E~ope" and other works, he became imbued with 
the idea that remains of a somewhat similar nature 
were to be found in the swamps of central Somerset. 
So, in his rambles over the moors, he was on the 
look-out for possible sites, and he visited peat-cutting 
operations in the vicinity. A little later, he found 
the mounds about a mile north of Glastonbury, on 
the road to Gedney, which raised a suspicio:a in his 
mind that they were artificial. Certain remains which 
turned up on mole-heaps settled the point, and 
Arthur Bulleid got into touch with Dr. Robert Munro 
and Sir W. Boyd Dawkins and other archmologists. 
This resulted in the British Association forming a 
Lake Village Committee in 1893, and making 
monetary grants from year to year towards the 
work. The excavations, however, began in 1892 
under the direction of Dr. Bulleid: they were found 
to be unique and became widely known. 

In the same year, due to Bulleid's inquiries and 
his keenness, a flat-bottomed dug-out boat, 17 ft. in 
length, was recovered at some little distance from 
the lake village, and is now preserved in the Glaston­
bury Museum. 

The first series of excavations extended until 1898 ; 
then there was an interval of six years, except for a 
comparatively small exploration conducted in 1902 
by Mr. H. St. George Gray. Further operations were 
resumed in 1904 under the joint direction of Dr. 
Bulleid and Mr. Gray. This work was completed in 
1907. In 1911, Vol. 1 of a large fully illustrated 
report in royal quarto size was published, followed in 
1916 by Vol. 2. Before the issue of Vol. 1, Messrs. 
Bulleid and Gray began a long series of excavations 
in 1908 on the site of the neighbouring lake village 
at Meare, which is in two separate areas known as 
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the West and East villages. Vol. 1, on the West 
village, was issued in 1948, and Vol. 2 is now in 
preparation, and will include Dr. Bulleid's description 
of the dwellings and fw-ther chapters by Mr. St. 
George Gray on the finds, which are very numerous. 
The Meare exploration has continued season by 
season up to date except during the period of the 
two World Wars. 

Dr. Bulleid's archroological interests extended 
beyond the lake villages, and he was a most careful, 
accurate and painstaking observer, and exceedingly 
pleasant to work with ; he would go to any trouble 
to achieve satisfactory results. Moreover, he was a 
good draughtsman-so essential an attainment for 
archroological work and especially in connexion with 
illustrating published reports. Bulleid was never 
happier than when working at the lake villages, 

where he made many friends who appreciated his 
archroological enthusiasm. 

For the Proceedings of the Somerset Archmological 
Society he wrote valued papers, notably "The Cham­
bered Barrows of North Somerset", "The Ancient 
Trackway in Meare Heath" and "The Shapwick 
Boat", and in collaboration with Dr. Wilfrid Jackson 
"The Burtle Sand Beds in Somerset" (in two 
papers). 

Bulleid was one of the very few remaining members 
of the Somerset Archa!ological Society who joined in 
the last century, namely, in 1893; and he was 
elected a vice-president in 1924. He became a Fellow 
of the Society of Antiquaries of London in 1896, of 
which body he was for some years one of the local 
secretaries for Somerset. He is survived by his wife 
and all his children-two sons and four daughters. 

NEWS and VIEWS 
Physiology at Cambridge : 

Prof. B. H. C. Matthews, C.B.E., F.R.S. 
PROF. E. D. ADRIAN, Nobel prizeman in medicine 

in 1932, and president since 1950 of the Royal 
Society (sec Nature, 166, 978; 1950), has recently 
been elected master of Trinity College, Cambridge. 
He has now retired from the chair of physiology in 
the University which he has held with great distinction 
since 1937, and he has been succeeded by Dr. B. H. C. 
Matthews, reader in experimental physiology in the 
University. Prof. Matthews is one of the foremost 
authorities on the activity of sense organs and 
nervous structures as well as a pioneer in the modern 
developments of electro-
physiological technique. 
With the advent of the 
valve amplifier after the 
First World War, it be-

Institute of Metals (Platinum) Medal: Mr. W. S. 
Robinson, until recently president of the Con­
solidated Zinc Corporation, Ltd., in recognition 
of his outstanding services to the non-ferrous metal 
industries in developing the Australian zinc-lead 
industry and the British zinc industry. 

Rosenhain Medal: Prof. Andre Guinier, Con­
servatoire National des Arts et Metiers, Paris, in 
recognition of his outstanding contributions in the 
field of physical metallurgy, particularly in con­
nexion with precipitation phenomena. 

W. H. A. Robertson Medal: Mr. C. E. Davies, 
for his paper on "The Cold-Rolling of Non-Ferrous 

Metals in Sheet and Strip 
Form" (J. Inst. Metals, 
78, 501 (1951)). 

Textile Institute : Awards 
came possible to record the 
very small potential 
changes due to individual 
nerve fibres, but conveni­
ent recording instruments 
were not then available. 
Prof. Matthews not only 
designed the robust mov­
ing-iron oscillograph which 

It is with deep regret THE Textile Institute 
has made the following 
awards: Institute Medal, 
awarded in recognition of 
distinguished services to 
the textile industry in 
general, and to the In­
stitute in particular, to 
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met the need, but also has 
been responsible for much 
of the subsequent improve-
ment in the design of 
amplifiers for biological work. He showed his great 
technical skill in the classical investigation of sensory 
discharges from muscles which he published in 1933 
and in his later work on conduction in the spinal cord. 
In 1939, his familiarity with a wide range of experi­
ment made him an ideal head of the Physiological 
Laboratory which was set up at Farnborough to study 
prcible1ns of aviation medicine. He was made a reader 
on his return to Cambridge in 1946, but still acts as 
an adviser in aero-medical research. Electro-physio­
logists in many countries owe their initial training to 
him and will join in congratulating him on his election 
to the professorship. 

Institute of Metals : Awards 
THE Council of the Institute of Metals has made tho 

following awards of medals for 1952 : 

Prof. W. E. Morton, pro­
fessor of textile tech­
nology, Manchester College 
of Technology, and to 
Mr. W. R. Wadsworth, 

managing director, Wm. Frost and Sons, Ltd., 
Macclesfield; Service Medal, awarded in recog­
nition of valuable services to the Institute, to Mr. F. 
Kendall, textile consultant and manager of the 
Physical Testing Laboratory, Bradford Dyers' Asso­
ciation, and to Mr. R. J. Smith, textile technologist 
at Imperial Chemical Industries, Ltd., Dyestuffs 
Division, Blackley, Manchester. 

British Commonwealth Scientific Conference 
A BRITISH Commonwealth Scientific Conference 

will be held in Australia during February 18-March 9 
under the chairmanship of Dr. Clunies Ross, chair­
man of the Australian Commonwealth Scientific and 
Industrial Research Organization. The Conference 
will commence at Canberra and after a few days 
will then adjourn to Melbourne. The delegates for 
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